
 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday December 16th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the December 16th, 2024 Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS  

a. Town Cloud – Local Government Financial Suite 
 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others 
b. Mail       

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any  
b. Updates – Logging on OBD Road 

 
ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a. Fire Chief – All Hands 
Review/ Approve request for $62,750 from GMFR vehicle reserve account 

b. Treasurer - Expense Report 
c. Town Clerk – November Report 

 
ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Review/ Approve – Parks & Rec Expendable Funds Account 
b. Appointment – Registrar of Voters  
c. Discussion – Facilities request/scheduling software 
d. Review/ Approve – Quote: Insulation for the Bunganut Ticket Booth 
e. Review/ Approve – Quote for Eagle Scout Supplies 
f. Review/ Approve – CEO: Updates to permit fee schedule 

 
ITEM #6 MINUTES 

a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 12/02/2024 

ITEM #7  SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #25 in the amount of $40,702.33 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #26 (FY2025) in the amount of $78,795.71 
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #27 (FY2025) in the amount of $7,500.00 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1 M.R.S.A §405 (C) Discussion regarding the condition, or acquisition of real property 
 
 
ADJOURN 



From: Ravi Jackson
To: Town Manager; Treasurer
Subject: TownCloud Financials
Date: Thursday, December 12, 2024 11:12:15 AM

Hi Lindsay,

What we are proposing for the Town of Lyman is to put down a fully refundable
deposit of $7,500 now, with the other half ($7,500) due at the time of implementation
(for Lyman this would be 07/01/25 in alignment with your next fiscal year). With the
total cost per year afterwards being $15,000, with options to renew at this locked-in
price for up to a further 9 years (so you would keep the $15,000 price for 10 years).
This would include full subscription to our new multi-tenant, cloud-based Financial
Suite for local government, (the first all new financial solution in 25 years). This would
include all hosting, data storage, training, migration from your old system, and
implementation and set up in TownCloud. If TownCloud did not deliver a fully
functional solution for Lyman with the same equivalent functionality as your existing
solution, then we would refund your deposit of $7,500 within 60 days of
termination, provided that the cause of any delay was due to TownCloud, and not
caused by the Town of Lyman - in which case we would need to extend out the date
of your implementation accordingly... 

As you know, we have been trying to educate folks about the choices out there for
running financial, and counter transactions. TownCloud would offer personal and
property tax billing and collections, BMV, transactions, cash receipting and balancing,
fund accounting, and payroll.

Essentially, the choices are:
1) To remain on the same defunct and unsupported solution
2) Migrate to the 'new' web version which has proven to be unreliable and
expensive
3) Move over to TownCloud. I would urge you to please consider this option
very strongly, not least as this is technically the most advanced solution
available, but also, because if you sign up with a fully refundable deposit
before the end of the year, we will lock in your price for up to 10 years.

As a reminder, our solution for local government includes:
Billing and Collections – A modern approach for a fully integrated, singular
billing and collection system
Budgeting – A fast and efficient system for creating and managing your budget
process.
General Ledger – A breakthrough in flexibility and efficiency with
unprecedented reporting capabilities.
Payables – A simple, efficient, and secure way to record, process, and
reconcile invoices.

ITEM #1: (a.) Town Cloud Software info

mailto:rjackson@towncloud.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:treasurer@lyman-me.gov
https://towncloud.com/products/finance/
https://towncloud.com/products/finance/
https://towncloud.com/products/services-revenue/#billing
https://towncloud.com/products/finance/#budgeting
https://towncloud.com/products/finance/#gl
https://towncloud.com/products/finance/#accounts


Payments – Centralized cash receipting, balancing, bank deposits, and
reconciliation made easy.

TownCloud is serious about providing a better future for towns where customers
aren't receiving value from legacy vendors. Our team has decades of experience in
public service, including myself. We exist to try and make things better for you and
your customers, so, I'm personally relieved that there are finally other options
available for local government...

I have also attached our standard agreement for our subscription services here. I
hope that this helps, please let me know if you have any questions, best wishes,

Best wishes,

Ravi Jackson
Platform Ambassador

Direct:       (207) 200-1925
Web: towncloud.com
"If nothing changes, nothing changes. If you keep doing what you're doing,
you're going to keep getting what you're getting. You want change, make
some". Courtney C. Stevens, The Lies about Truth. - Actually, TownCloud has made the change
possible for you, with the only all new Fund Accounting system built in the last 25
years.

https://towncloud.com/products/services-revenue/#payments
https://towncloud.com/
https://towncloud.com/subscription-services-agreement/
https://towncloud.com/
https://towncloud.com/
https://towncloud.com/
















































FY 2024 Invoice : TRIO services



ITEM #4: (a.) GMFR Report







Towns of Dayton and Lyman
Goodwin’s Mills Fire-Rescue
481 Goodwin’s Mills Road
Lyman, Maine 04002-7524
(207) 499-7878

To: Lyman Selectboard
From: Chief Mathiew J. Duross
Date: 12/13/2024
Subject: Capital Vehicle Purchase

I am requesting authorization to purchase two replacement vehicles from the GMFR Vehicle

Reserve Account. After discussions with the Fire Commission we feel now is the time to replace

our 2011 Chevrolet 2500 Service Truck and the 2016 Ford Interceptor Command vehicle.

Attached is a spreadsheet showing two options, and the associated cost of outfitting with

emergency lights, sirens, lettering, decals, a toolbox for the bed of the service truck, and a

command cabinet.

The total cost of this project will not exceed $125,500. This would be a 50-50 split with the

town of Dayton, therefor I am requesting $62,750 from each town.

Respectfully Submitted,

Mathiew J. Duross

Fire Chief

Serving the communities of Lyman and Dayton, Maine, since 1949













































G
M

FR
 2

02
4 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

Pu
rc

ha
se

O
ut

rig
ht

W
ith

 S
al

e/
Tr

ad
e 

of
 o

ld
F2

50
52

,1
49

.0
0

$ 
  

O
pt

io
n 

1 
F2

50
/T

ah
oe

12
4,

27
0.

00
$ 

  
12

0,
27

0.
00

$ 
  

Ta
ho

e
58

,3
71

.0
0

$ 
  

-
$ 

    
    

    
    

   
Ex

pi
di

tio
n

59
,5

99
.0

0
$ 

  
O

pt
io

n 
2 

F2
50

/E
xp

id
iti

on
12

5,
49

8.
00

$ 
  

12
1,

49
8.

00
$ 

  
Pl

ow
 s

et
 u

p
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

    
O

ut
fit

tin
g 

F2
50

1,
30

0.
00

$ 
    

O
ut

fit
tin

g 
co

m
m

an
d

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
    

Pi
ck

 u
p 

bo
x

75
0.

00
$ 

    
    

Tr
ad

e 
in

 S
T8

8 
to

 Q
ui

rk
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

    
   

C
om

m
an

d 
C

ab
in

et
2,

70
0.

00
$ 

    
Le

tte
rin

g
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

    
Se

ll 
C

ar
 to

 A
lfr

ed
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

    
   

17
.5

 fe
et

 lo
ng



ITEM #4: (b.) Expense Report

























Report to Selectmen 

Month of November 2024 

2024-2025 Tax Year 

Real Estate Tax Commitment - $8,315,962.30 

Personal Property Tax Commitment – $     37,823.73 

Total Tax Commitment: $8,353,786.03 

Supplemental Taxes YTD: $    219.00 

Abatements Granted YTD: $ 63.05     

Prior Year(s) Abatement(s) YTD: $    

Real Estate / Personal Property Tax Payments Collected $98,903.16 
Includes Current, Delinquent, Prepayments, and Lien Payments for the month. 

Year to Date: $4,375,531.15 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

Monthly Excise Tax 

Excise Tax Received 

Vehicles registered here at office:    $  85,366.52 

Online Rapid Renewal Service       12,887.67 

Total Vehicle Excise   $  98,254.19 

Boat Excise 

Boats registered here at office:    $  0.00 

Online Registration Service   $___  0.00 

Total Boat Excise    $            0.00 

Total Excise   $   98,254.19 

Excise Tax Reimbursement      $     4,115.12   

Excise Tax Collected by State 

Year-to-date excise collection   $  618,950.74 

Respectfully submitted: Susan J. Bellerose, Tax Collector 

ITEM #4: (c.) Town Clerk Report



Town of Lyman 
11 South Waterboro Rd. 

Lyman, ME  04002 

December 16th, 2024 

To the Town of Lyman Selectboard: 

On behalf of the Parks and Recreation Committee, I request consideration for a blanket fund to 

support fundraising efforts for our Parks and Recreation Department. 

A blanket fund dedicated to fundraising initiatives would serve as a much-needed resource to 

enable the Parks and Recreation Department to: 

1. Enhance Existing Facilities: Funds could be used to improve and add things of interest

to the playgrounds, sports fields, and picnic areas, and trails

2. Expand Programming: Additional financial support would allow the department to

offer more diverse and inclusive activities for children, seniors, and families.

3. Foster Community Engagement: Hosting events such as  seasonal festivals, or outdoor

movie nights would bring residents together and strengthen our community bonds.

4. Adding Equipment:  Equipment that we might need to enhance programming and

events.

A dedicated blanket fund would provide flexibility for the department to prioritize initiatives 

based on the most immediate and impactful needs while giving community members the 

confidence that their contributions are being managed responsibly. The items listed are just a few 

of the ideas we might want to fundraise for.   

To access funds from the account any requests for spending shall be in a purchase order format, 

prior to any obligation and signed by the Town Manager for approval.  

The Lyman Parks and Recreation committee, dedicated to the cause, requests permission to 

organize fundraising events specifically dedicated to all things related to helping Lyman Parks 

and Recreation 

Thank you! 

Holly Hart 

Director of Lyman Parks and Recreation 

Accepted and approved by the Lyman Select Board on , December 16, 2024 

___________________________ _____________________________ 

Jessica Picard – Chair  Victoria Gavel – Vice Chair 

___________________________ _____________________________ 
Amber Swett  David Alves 

___________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

ITEM #5: (a.) Parks & Rec Request



ITEM #5: (c.) Recreation Software

















MyRec Pricing 

Pricing is based off of revenues collected. Where this is new to Lyman, initial 
pricing will begin at $2,850. They will also prorate for a partial year. (i.e: if 
starting March 2025 – June 2025 = $950) 

Less than $25,000 revenues  Annual Price = $2,850 

$25,001 – $100,000 revenues  Annual Price = $3,295 

$100,001 - $150,000 revenues Annual Price = $3,680 



Estimate
Date

12/9/2024

Estimate #

2146

Name / Address

Town Of Lyman
11 South Waterboro Rd
Lyman, Me04002

Bob Duling

74 Munnick Point Rd
ME 04002

Project

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

insulation and staples 400 sqare ft of r13 insulation 380.00 380.00
Labor to install insalation 520.00 520.00
7/16 osb  for wall and ceiling protection for insulation. and screws 250.00 250.00
Labor to install plywood over insulation 260.00 260.00

$1,410.00

ITEM #5: (d.) Bunganut Ticket Booth Quote



To
ta

l R
eq

ue
st

: $
61

9.
20

ITEM #5: (e.) Eagle Scout Quote

Lindsay Gagne
Highlight



LYMAN BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
11 South Waterboro Road, Lyman, Maine  04002 

Telephone: (207) 247-0647     Email:  ceo@lyman-me.gov 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________  

Beginning any activity before permit is issued may result in a 

double fee, or a penalty of $200, whichever is more. 

Re-inspection fee for any permit  .............................. $50.00 

Building 

Minimum fee (residential) ..................................... $60.00 

Minimum fee (commercial) ................................. $100.00 

New structures, habitable area - per square ft ....... $0.50 

New structures, non-habitable (decks, sheds, 

garage, etc.) - per square foot ....................... $0.30 

Renovations – per $1000 ....................................... $3.00 

Modular home - per square foot ............................. $0.30 

Foundations - - per square foot .............................. $0.20 

Commercial Structures – per $1000 ...................... $6.00 

Dock permit……………………………………………$60.00 

Assigning 911 number ........................................... $0.00 

Demolition permits................................................ $50.00 

Gravel pit inspection  .......................................... $250.00 

Swimming pools (electric permit if required) ........ $60.00 

Sign permit ........................................................... $50.00 

Plumbing 

Minimum fee ....................................................... $40.00 

Fixture fee, each fixture ...................................... $12.50 

Hook-up fee ........................................................ $40.00 

         Transfer fee ......................................................... $40.00

Electrical:   Contact Electrical Inspector – Fees posted online 

lyman.electrical.inspector@gmail.com 

Septic 

New system ................................................... $312.50 

Surcharge on full systems only....................... $ 15.00 

Replacement field .......................................... $187.50 

Non-engineered replacement tank ................ $187.50 

Added component ........................................... $30.00 

Minimum Fee ................................................... $40.00 

Variance (on new systems only)...................... $20.00 

Land Use Fees 

Shoreland Tree Removal  .................. $15.00 per tree 

Home Occupation including Medical Marijuana Facility 

    Home Occupation Permit fee…………....$200.00 

    Marijuana Annual Inspection Fee ........... $200.00 

Bi-annual Gravel Pit Inspection ..................... $175.00 

Best Practical Location .................................. $250.00 

Planning Board Site Plan Review…………….$350.00 

Subdivision Application Fee ............................ $1,000 

Plus $250 per lot and additional applicable 
fees ,see below 

Preliminary Subdivision Plan .................... $250.00 

Final Subdivision Plan .............................. $250.00 

Revisions Request .................................... $250.00 

       Private Way application/review………………$200.00 

Zoning Board of Appeals ............................... $350.00 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 __________________________ ---------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 

Jessica Picard (Chair) Victoria Gavel (Vice Chair) David Alves 

 __________________________ ---------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 

Amber Swett Joseph Wagner Effective Date 

ITEM #5: (f.) Building Permit Fee Schedule Update

mailto:ceo@lyman-me.gov
mailto:lyman.electrical.inspector@gmail.com


Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday December 2nd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 3 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/ 

Selectboard members present: Jessica Picard, Victoria Gavel, Amber Swett, Joseph Wagner, David Alves (Via 
Zoom) 
Selectboard members absent: none 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Open bids – Assessment Equalization Project

No Bids received. RFP will be put out to bid again and bids will be opened on January 21st, 2025

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
No Public Input 

b. Mail •York County Sheriff’s Report

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any

No new updates
b. Bunganut ADA ramps, quote/ RFP

Discussion, the project will need to go out to Bid. Bunganut Committee is working on drafting a
scope of work for the RFP. Shoreland zoning requirements require Planning Board approval for
permanent structures in the water. Bunganut Committee recommended the docks be temporary,
however this presents and issue of establishing consistency of the Towns responsibility to manage
putting in and removing the docks each season. Board agrees to have the Bunganut Committee
work on developing a plan for the three ramps and getting permits/approvals before putting out to
bid.

c. Discussion, YMCA contract renewal; workshop held on 11/25
Discussion among the board of doing a net zero contract. Splitting certain utilities will be difficult to
parse out accordingly so it makes sense to have them collect fees at the booth in lieu of payment
and charge them for the field use same as any other requesting the field. Also do a one-year term
for the contract with the option to extend renewal for a 2nd year and 3rd year. Walk throughs should
be done with a official of the Town at least once int eh Spring and in the Fall as well as the Y doing
routine maintenance checks and reporting. Communications should be within 48 hours. The Town
Manager will draft a contract based on discussion with the board and send it to the YMCA to review.
Joseph Wagner – States he is recusing himself due to being a member of the YMCA.

ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Fire Chief – All Hands – Reviewed in Packet

Victoria Gavel – States at the Fire Commission meetings they have been reviewing and discussing
possible maintenance plans for specific vehicles with wear and rusting. This is outside of the
replacement plan they have in place. She will offer updates as she received more information.

b. Treasurer - Expense Report – Reviewed in Packet

DRAFT
ITEM #6: (a.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday December 2nd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 3 

c. Town Clerk - Excise Report – Reviewed in Packet
d. Parks & Recs – November report

Holly Hart – New playground edition has been added to Chadborne Field. The committee is
requesting an expendable funds account so they can collect donations for general Parks and Rec
services. This will be added on the next agenda.

ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Review/ Approve – Quote Bunganut Chapel Repairs

David Alves – States Eldredge Lumber has donated the roofing and lumber materials along with
hardware and fasteners to repair the Chapel building. The quote is for labor of repair.
David Alves – Motions to accept the quote
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion
Discussion the board agrees the funds will come out of the Bunganut Project Reserve Account
Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. Review/ Approve Funky Bow - Special Amusement Application & On Premises Liquor License
Amber Swett – Motions to approve the liquor license and special amusement application for
Funky Bow.
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion.
Discussion there have been no complaints or violations with this business.
Motion passes: 5-0-0

c. Committee Applicant – Cemetery Committee
Victoria Gavel – Motions to appoint Denis Clark on the Cemetery Committee and allow him to also
work with his son on the committee.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

d. Discussion, schedule Budget workshops
Budget workshops are scheduled for Thursday December 19th at 6:00pm and Monday December
30th at 6:00pm, both being at the Town Hall.

e. Discussion, newsletter
Discussion, Joe is not interested at this time, however will pass along information from trainings and
other types of summits.

ITEM #6 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 11/18/2024

David Alves – Motions to approve
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion
Discussion clarifying Item #5 (a) and (b) the amounts approved $2,550 approved for forester to
mark out 100-feet from shoreline at the park and $4,650 for KCB landscaping to do the cleanup
debris in the Pines and areas marked out by the Forester.
Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #7 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #22 in the amount of $27,068.23

David Alves – Motions to approve, Amber Swett seconds, Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #23 (FY2025) in the amount of $721,151.47

Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #24 (FY2025) in the amount of $2,673.57

Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday December 2nd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 3 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
None 

ADJOURN 

Amber Swett – Motions to adjourn. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Jessica Picard 

__________________________________________ 
David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 3 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated December 2nd, 2024 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne DRAFT



ITEM #7: (a.) Payroll Warrant









ITEM #7: (b.) AP Warrant



















ITEM #7: (c.) AP Warrant






